# FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND REPORT OF INDEPENDENT CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

December 31, 2022

# CONTENTS

Pag	e,
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT1	
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS	
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS	
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION6	
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES7	
BALANCE SHEET - GOVERNMENTAL FUND	
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - GOVERNMENTAL FUND9	
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE – GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS – TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES	)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS	
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION	
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL - GENERAL FUND22	,
OTHER INFORMATION	
SUMMARY OF ASSESSED VALUATION, MILL LEVY AND PROPERTY TAYES COLLECTED	



#### INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Board of Directors Cordillera Valley Club Metropolitan District

#### **Opinions**

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, and the major fund of Cordillera Valley Club Metropolitan District (the District), as of and for the year ended December 31, 2022, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the District's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the governmental activities, and the major fund, of the District, as of December 31, 2022, and the respective changes in financial position for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

#### **Basis for Opinions**

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of the District, and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions.

#### Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the District's ability to continue as a going concern for twelve months beyond the financial statement date, including any currently known information that may raise substantial doubt shortly thereafter.

#### **Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements**

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinions. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial statements.



In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, we:

- Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.
- Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.
- Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the District's internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.
- Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the financial statements.
- Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the District's ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related matters that we identified during the audit.

#### **Required Supplementary Information**

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management's discussion and analysis and the general fund budgetary comparison information be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

#### Other Information

Management is responsible for the other information included in the annual report. The other information comprises the Summary of Assessed Valuation, Mill Levy and Property Taxes Collected, but does not include the basic financial statements and our auditor's report thereon. Our opinions on the basic financial statements do not cover the other information, and we do not express an opinion or any form of assurance thereon.

In connection with our audit of the basic financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and consider whether a material inconsistency exists between the other information and the basic financial statements, or the other information otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work performed, we conclude that an uncorrected material misstatement of the other information exists, we are required to describe it in our report.

Chaduner, Stinkircher, Davis & Co., P.C.
Chadwick, Steinkirchner, Davis & Co., P.C.

May 22, 2023

Management's Discussion and Analysis December 31, 2022

As management of Cordillera Valley Club Metropolitan District (the "District"), we offer readers of the District's financial statements this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the District for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2022.

#### **Overview of the Financial Statements**

This discussion and analysis are intended to serve as an introduction to the District's basic financial statements. The District's basic financial statements comprise three components: 1) government-wide financial statements; 2) fund financial statements; and 3) notes to the financial statements.

**Government-wide financial statements:** The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the District's finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector business.

The Statement of Net Position presents information on all the District's assets, deferred outflows, liabilities, and deferred inflows with the difference between the amounts reported as net position. Over time, increases or decreases in net position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the District is improving or deteriorating.

The Statement of Activities presents information showing how the government's net position changed during the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net position are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will only result in cash flows in future fiscal periods (i.e. uncollected taxes).

The governmental activity of the District is primarily operating and maintaining the roads within the District. There are no business-type activities within the District. The government-wide financial statements can be found on pages 6 and 7 of this report.

**Fund financial statements:** A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The District, like other state and local governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements. The District currently has the General Fund which is a governmental fund.

**Governmental Funds:** Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the government-wide financial statements focus on near-term inflows and outflows of expendable resources, as well as on balances of expendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year. Such information may be useful in evaluating a government's near-term financing requirements. The governmental fund financial statements can be found on pages 8 and 9 of this report.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar information presented for governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. By doing so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the government's near-term financing decisions. Both the expenditures and changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between governmental funds and governmental activities.

**Notes to the Financial Statements:** The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements. The Notes to the Financial Statements can be found on pages 11 through 21 of this report.

**Supplementary Information:** Supplementary information is contained on pages 22 and 23 and provides information on the District's budget and actual expense comparison and historic assessed value and

property taxes levied.

**Government-wide Financial Analysis:** The District's primary source of revenue is property taxes. The property taxes levied by the District in 2021 are payable by the property owners in 2022. During 2022, the District also obtained funding from real estate transfer assessments collected through Cordillera Valley Club Property Owners Association (Association) which was used to cover a portion of the cost of providing public safety services and certain capital expenditures. The Association also made a capital contribution which was used to pay a portion of the cost of the berm construction.

The following table shows condensed financial information derived from the government-wide financial statements of the District which compares 2022 to 2021:

	2022	2021
Assets:		
Current and other assets	\$2,010,536	\$2,082,673
Capital assets	4,237,363	4,182,186
Total assets	\$6,247,899	\$6,264,859
Liabilities:		
Current liabilities	\$36,560	\$32,004
Long-term liabilities	<u>1,347,527</u>	1,442,527
Total liabilities	\$1,384,087	\$1,474,531
Deferred Inflows:		
Property Taxes	\$564,586	\$540,971
•	400.,000	ψο . σ,σ
Net position:		
Net invested in capital assets	\$2,889,836	\$2,739,659
Restricted for emergencies	13,656	12,057
Unrestricted	1,407,299	<u>1,511,0288</u>
Total Net Position	<u>\$4,310,791</u>	<u>\$4,262,744</u>
Revenues:		
Program revenues:		
Operating grants and contributions	\$227,070	\$256,133
Capital grants and contributions	150,664	261,067
5 F-1-1- 3 1-1-1-1-1-1-1-1-1-1-1-1-1-1-1		
General revenues:		
Property taxes	540,969	498,702
Other taxes	29,194	27,359
Interest and other revenue	<u>13,874</u>	<u>1,868</u>
Total Revenues	\$584,037	\$527,929
Expenses:		
General government	\$73,194	\$71,990
Public safety	439,835	361,788
Community operations	365,229	331,467
Interest on long-term debt	<u>35,466</u>	<u>37,950</u>
Total Expenses	<u>\$913,724</u>	<u>\$803,195</u>
Change in Net Position	\$48,047	\$241,934
Net Position – Beginning	4,262,744	3,907,418
Prior period adjustment (Note I)		<u>113,392</u>
Net Position – Ending	<u>\$4,310,791</u>	<u>\$4,262,744</u>
4		

#### **Government-wide Financial Analysis (continued)**

The District's overall financial position, as measured by net position, increased by \$48,047 during 2022. The increase is primarily attributable to very strong real estate transfer assessments which are collected through CVCPOA and contributed to the District, resulting in a surplus of revenues over expenditures in 2022.

#### **Financial Analysis of the District's Funds**

The District uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements.

**Governmental Funds:** The focus of the District's governmental fund is to provide information on near-term inflows, outflows, and balances of expendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the District's financing requirements. In particular, unassigned fund balance may serve as a useful measure of a government's net resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year.

For the fiscal year, the District's fund balance decreased (\$100,493). This decrease was primarily the result of capital expenditures. The fund balance at the end of the 2022 was \$1,412,205. Part of this fund balance is expected to be used for future debt service in an effort to keep the mill levy rate lower.

**Budget Variances:** The budget variance report is shown on page 22 of the report.

**Capital Assets:** The District invested in capital asset additions of \$301,333 during 2022 and recorded depreciation expenses of \$246,156. Additional information can be found in the Notes to the Financial Statement on page 18 of this report.

**Long-term Debt:** The District's long-term debt outstanding at the beginning of the year was \$1,442,527 and debt was paid down by \$95,000 during the year resulting in an ending balance of \$1,347,527. Additional information can be found in the Notes to the Financial Statements on page 21 of this report.

**Request for Information:** This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the District's finances for all those with an interest in the government's finances. Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report or requests for additional financial information should be addressed to Cordillera Valley Club Metropolitan District, c/o Marchetti & Weaver, LLC, 28 Second Street, Suite 213, Edwards, CO 81632, (970) 926-6060.

# STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

# December 31, 2022

AGGETTG		overnmental Activities
ASSETS Cash and investments	\$	1 246 214
	Þ	1,346,214 2,127
Due from county treasurer Property taxes receivable		564,586
Accounts receivable		92,372
Prepaid insurance		5,237
Noncurrent assets		3,237
Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation		4,237,363
Total assets		6,247,899
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS Deferred charge - premium on refunding		11,565
Total deferred outflows		11,565
LIABILITIES		22.745
Accounts payable		33,745
Accrued interest		2,815
Long-term note payable  Due and payable within one year		95,000
Due and payable after one year		1,252,527
Total liabilities		1,384,087
Total Monthles		1,501,007
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES		
Property taxes		564,586
Total deferred inflows of resources		564,586
NET POSITION		
Net investment in capital assets		2,889,836
Restricted for emergencies		13,656
Unrestricted		1,407,299
Total net position	\$	4,310,791

The accompaning notes are an integral part of this statement.

# STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

Year ended December 31, 2022

				·				Net (Expense)
							Rev	enue and Changes
				Program	Rev	enues	i	n Net Position
			O	perating		Capital		
			$G_1$	rants and	G	rants and	(	Governmental
Function/Programs	Expenses		Cor	Contributions Contributions		ntributions		Activities
Governmental activities:								
General government	\$	73,194	\$	-	\$	-	\$	(73,194)
Public safety		439,835		227,070		150,664		(62,101)
Community operations		365,229		-		-		(365,229)
Interest on long-term debt		35,466		-		-		(35,466)
Total governmental activities	\$	913,724	\$	227,070	\$	150,664	\$	(535,990)
	Ge	neral reven	ues:					
	P	roperty tax						540,969
	S	specific own	nersh	ip tax				29,194
	I	nvestment i	ncom	ne				13,874
		Total gene	ral re	venues				584,037
		Change in	net p	osition				48,047
	Ne	t position -	begin	nning				4,262,744
	Ne	et position -	endi	ng			\$	4,310,791

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement

# BALANCE SHEET - GOVERNMENTAL FUND

# December 31, 2022

December 31, 2022	(	General
ASSETS	<u> </u>	Jeneral
Cash and investments	\$	1,346,214
Due from county treasurer	Ψ	2,127
Property taxes receivable		564,586
Accounts receivable		92,372
Prepaid insurance		5,237
Total Assets	-	2,010,536
I I A DIL ITIEC		
LIABILITIES Liabilities		
Accounts payable		22 745
Total Liabilities		33,745
		33,773
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES		
Property taxes		564,586
Total Deferred Inflows of Resources		564,586
Total Liabilities and Deferred Inflows of Resources		598,331
ELIND EQUITY		
FUND EQUITY		5 227
Nonspendable  Restricted for emergencies		5,237
Restricted for emergencies Unassigned		13,656 1,393,312
Total Fund Equity		1,412,205
Total Land Equity	Ψ	1,412,203
Fund balance reported above	\$	1,412,205
Amounts reported in the Statement of Net		
Position are different because:		
Long-term debt is not due and payable in the current period and,		
therefore, is not reported in the funds.	(	1,347,527)
•	`	
Other long-term assets such as prepayment premiums on bonds are		11 565
not financial resources and, therefore, are not reported in the funds.		11,565
Accrued interest is not due and payable in the current period and,		
therefore, is not reported in the funds.		(2,815)
Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial		
resources and, therefore, are not reported in the funds.	4	4,237,363
-		
Net Position of Governmental Activities	\$ 4	4,310,791

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.

# STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - GOVERNMENTAL FUND

# Year ended December 31, 2022

	General
Revenues	
Taxes	\$ 570,163
Interest income	13,874
Contributions from CVCPOA	377,734
Other	-
Total revenues	961,771
Expenditures	
General government	73,194
Public safety	339,314
Community operations	131,429
Debt principal	95,000
Debt interest	33,829
Capital outlay	389,498
Total expenditures	1,062,264
Excess of revenues over	
(under) expenditures	(100,493)
	4.742.600
Fund balance - beginning	1,512,698
Fund balance - ending	\$ 1,412,205

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.

# RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS - TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

## For the year ended December 31, 2022

To the few chaca Become of 51, 2022	
Net change in fund balance	\$ (100,493)
Amounts reported in the Statement of Activities are different because:	
The repayment of principal is an expenditure in the governmental funds, but is a reduction of debt in the statement of net position.	95,000
Premiums paid on debt are expensed in the fund financial statements, but are recognized as deferred outflows in the statement of net position and amortized. over time.	(1,637)
Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the Statement of Activities, the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives as depreciation expense. This is the amount by which capital outlay exceeded	
depreciation during the year (301,333 - 246,165).	55,177
Change in Net Position of Governmental Activities	\$ 48,047

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.

#### NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 31, 2022

#### NOTE A – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

#### 1. Organization

Cordillera Valley Club Metropolitan District (the District) was established on January 1, 2003 as a quasi-municipal corporation and political subdivision of the State of Colorado. The District was formed primarily to finance, construct, operate, and maintain the basic public infrastructure as well as parks and recreation facilities and other improvements within the District's boundaries in Eagle County, Colorado.

The District's financial statements are prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP). The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is responsible for establishing GAAP for state and local governments through its pronouncements (Statements and Interpretations).

#### 2. Reporting Entity

The District is governed by an elected Board which is responsible for setting policy, appointing administrative personnel and adopting an annual budget in accordance with the provisions of the Colorado Special District Act.

The reporting entity consists of (a) the primary government; i.e., the District, and (b) organizations for which the District is financially accountable. The District is considered financially accountable for legally separate organizations if it is able to appoint a voting majority of an organization's governing body and is either able to impose its will on that organization or there is a potential for the organization to provide specific financial benefits, to, or to impose specific financial burdens on, the District. Consideration is also given to other organizations which are fiscally dependent; i.e., unable to adopt a budget, levy taxes, or issue debt without approval by the District. Organizations for which the nature and significance of their relationship with the District are such that exclusion would cause the reporting entity's financial statements to be misleading or incomplete are also included in the reporting entity.

Based on the criteria discussed above, the District is not financially accountable for any other entity, nor is the District a component unit of any other government.

#### 3. Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements

The District's basic financial statements include both government-wide (reporting the District as a whole) and fund financial statements (reporting the District's major funds). Both the government-wide and fund financial statements categorize primary activities as either governmental or business type.

#### NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 31, 2022

#### NOTE A – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES – CONTINUED

#### Government-wide Financial Statements

In the government-wide Statement of Net Position, the governmental activities column is reported on a full accrual, economic resource basis, which recognizes all long-term assets, receivables and deferred outflows as well as deferred inflows, long-term debt and obligations. The District's net position is reported as net investment in capital assets, restricted for emergencies, and unrestricted.

The government-wide focus is on the sustainability of the District as an entity and the change in the District's net position resulting from the current year's activities.

#### **Fund Financial Statements**

The financial transactions of the District are reported in individual funds in the fund financial statements. Each fund is accounted for by providing a separate set of self-balancing accounts that comprises its assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, deferred inflows of resources, fund equity, revenues and expenditures.

The fund focus is on current available resources and budget compliance.

#### 4. Fund Accounting

The District uses funds to maintain its financial records during the year. A fund is defined as a fiscal and accounting entity with a self-balancing set of accounts. The District currently has one fund, the General Fund, which is a governmental fund.

#### Governmental Funds

Governmental funds are those through which most governmental functions typically are financed. Governmental funds reporting focuses on the sources, uses and balances of current financial resources. Expendable assets are assigned to the various governmental funds according to the purpose for which they may or must be used. Current liabilities are assigned to the fund from which they will be paid. The difference among governmental fund assets, deferred outflows, liabilities, and deferred inflows is reported as fund balance.

The District reports the following governmental funds:

General Fund – The General Fund is used to account for all financial resources of the District except those required to be accounted for in another fund. The general fund balance is available to the District for any purpose provided it is expended or transferred according to the general laws of Colorado and the bylaws of the District.

#### NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 31, 2022

#### NOTE A – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES – CONTINUED

#### 5. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation

Measurement focus refers to whether financial statements measure changes in current resources only (current financial focus) or changes in both current and long-term resources (long-term economic focus). Basis of accounting refers to the point at which revenues, expenditures, or expenses are recognized in the accounts and reported in the financial statements.

#### Long-Term Economic Focus and Accrual Basis

Governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements use the long-term economic focus and are presented on the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized when earned and expenses are recognized when incurred, regardless of the timing of the related cash flows.

#### Current Financial Focus and Modified Accrual Basis

The governmental fund financial statements use the current financial focus and are presented on the modified accrual basis of accounting. Under the modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recorded when susceptible to accrual; i.e., both measurable and available. "Available" means collectible within the current period or within 60 days of year-end. Expenditures are generally recognized when the related liability is incurred. The exception to this general rule is that principal and interest on long-term debt, if any, is recognized when due.

When an expense is incurred that can be paid using either restricted or unrestricted resources (net position), the District's policy is to first apply the expense toward restricted resources and then toward unrestricted resources. In governmental funds, the District's policy is to first apply the expenditure toward restricted fund balance and then to other, less-restrictive classifications—committed and then assigned fund balances before using unassigned fund balances.

#### **Financial Statement Presentation**

Amounts reported as program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants for goods, services, or privileges provided, 2) operating grants and contributions, and 3) capital grants and contributions, including special assessments. Internally dedicated resources are reported as general revenues rather than as program revenues. Likewise, general revenues include all taxes.

#### NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 31, 2022

#### NOTE A – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES – CONTINUED

#### 6. Governmental Fund Balances

In the governmental fund financial statements, fund balances are classified as follows:

- *Non-spendable fund balance* The portion of fund balance that cannot be spent because it is either not in spendable form (such as inventory) or is legally or contractually required to be maintained intact.
- Restricted fund balance The portion of fund balance constrained to being used for a specific purpose by external parties (such as grantors or bondholders), constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.
- Committed fund balance The portion of fund balance constrained for specific purposes according to limitations imposed by the District's highest level of decision making authority, the Board of Directors, prior to the end of the current fiscal year. The constraint may be removed or changed only through formal action of the Board of Directors.
- Assigned fund balance The portion of fund balance set aside for planned or intended purposes. The intended use may be expressed by the Board of Directors or other individuals authorized to assign funds to be used for a specific purpose.
- *Unassigned fund balance* The residual portion of fund balance that does not meet any of the above criteria. The District will only report a positive unassigned fund balance in the General Fund.

#### 7. Intergovernmental revenues

For governmental funds, intergovernmental revenues, such as contributions awarded on a non-reimbursement basis, are recorded as receivables and revenues when measurable and available.

#### 8. Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets, deferred outflows, liabilities, deferred inflows and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amount of revenues and expenditures/expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

#### NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

#### December 31, 2022

#### NOTE A – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES – CONTINUED

#### 9. Capital Assets

Capital assets, which include land, buildings, equipment, vehicles, and infrastructure assets, are reported in the government-wide financial statements. Capital assets are defined by the District as assets with an initial cost of \$5,000 or more and an estimated useful life in excess of two years. Such assets are recorded at historical cost. Donated capital assets are recorded at an estimated fair value at the date of donation. Construction in progress is not depreciated until the construction is completed.

Capital assets of the primary government are depreciated using the straight-line method over the following estimated lives:

Estimated lives:	
Infrastructure	40
Landscape improvements	15
Equipment	7
Vehicles	7

## 10. Property taxes

Property taxes are assessed in one year as a lien on the property, but not collected by the governmental entities until the subsequent year. In accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, the assessed but uncollected property taxes have been recorded as a receivable and as a deferred inflow.

Taxes levied in one year are collected in the succeeding year. Thus, taxes certified in 2022 will be collected in 2023. Taxes are due on January 1st in the year of collection; however, they may be paid in either one installment (no later than April 30th) or two equal installments (not later than February 28th and June 15th) without interest or penalty. Taxes which are not paid within the prescribed time bear interest at the rate of one (1%) per month until paid. Unpaid amounts and the accrued interest thereon become delinquent on June 15th.

#### 11. Stewardship, Compliance, and Accountability

#### **Budgets and Budgetary Accounting**

In the fall of each year, the District's Board of Directors formally adopts a budget with appropriations by fund for the ensuing year pursuant to the Colorado Local Budget Law. The budgets for governmental funds are adopted on a basis consistent with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP).

#### NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 31, 2022

#### NOTE A – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES – CONTINUED

As required by Colorado statutes, the District followed the following timetable in approving and enacting a budget for the ensuing years:

- 1. For the 2022 budget year, prior to August 25, 2021, the County Assessor sent to the District the certified assessed valuation of all taxable property within the District's boundaries. The County assessor may change the assessed valuation on or before December 10, only once by a single notification to the District.
- 2. On or before October 20, 2021, the District's accountant submitted to the District's Board of Directors a recommended budget which detailed the necessary property taxes needed along with other available revenues to meet the District's operating requirements.
- 3. A public hearing on the proposed budget and capital program was held by the Board no later than 45 days prior to the close of the fiscal year.
- 4. Prior to December 15, 2021, the District computed and certified to the County Commissioners a rate of levy that derived the necessary property taxes as computed in the proposed 2022 budget.
- 5. For the 2022 budget, the budget and appropriating resolution was adopted prior to December 31, 2021.

After adoption of the budget resolution, the District may make the following changes: a) it may transfer appropriated monies between funds or between spending agencies within a fund, as determined by the original appropriation level; b) supplemental appropriations to the extent of revenues in excess of those estimated in the budget; c) emergency appropriations; and d) reduction of appropriations for which originally estimated revenues are insufficient.

The level of control in the budget at which expenditures exceed appropriations is at the fund level. All appropriations lapse at year end. There were no supplemental appropriations for 2022.

#### **NOTE B – CASH AND INVESTMENTS**

#### Deposits

The Colorado Public Deposit Protection Act (PDPA) requires that all units of local government deposit cash in eligible public depositories; eligibility is determined by State regulators. Amounts on deposit in excess of Federal insurance levels must be collateralized. The eligible collateral is determined by the PDPA. The PDPA allows the institution to create a singe collateral pool for all public funds. The pool for all the uninsured public deposits as a group is to be maintained by another institution or held in trust. The market value of the collateral must be at least equal to the aggregate uninsured deposits.

#### NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 31, 2022

#### NOTE B – CASH AND INVESTMENTS – CONTINUED

The State Regulatory Commissions for banks and financial services are required by statute to monitor the naming of eligible depositories and reporting of the uninsured deposits and assets maintained in collateral pools.

At December 31, 2022, the District's cash deposits had a carrying balance and a bank balance as follows:

	Carrying	Bank	FDIC
	Balance	Balance	Coverage
Deposit	\$ 722,104	\$ 722,104	\$ 250,000

#### Investments

Colorado state statutes authorize the District to invest in U.S. Treasury bills, obligations of any other U.S. agencies, obligations of the World Bank, general obligation bonds of any state or any of their subdivisions, revenue bonds of any state or any of their subdivisions, bankers acceptance notes, commercial paper, repurchase agreements, money market funds and guaranteed investment contracts. All investments must be held by the District, in its name, or in custody of a third party on behalf of the local government.

As of December 31, 2022, the District had invested \$624,110 in the Colorado Local Government Liquid Asset Trust (Colotrust), an investment vehicle established for local government entities in Colorado to pool surplus funds. Colotrust operates similarly to a money market fund and each share is equal in value to \$1.00. A designated custodial bank provides safekeeping and depository services to Colotrust in connection with the direct investment and withdrawal functions of Colotrust. Substantially all securities owned by Colotrust are held by the Federal Reserve Bank in the account maintained for the custodial bank. The custodian's internal records identify the investments owned by Colotrust. Colotrust funds carry a Standard & Poor's AAAm rating. There is no custodial, interest rate or foreign currency risk exposure. Colotrust operates like a 2a-7 external investment pool and investments in the pool are valued at \$1 net asset value (NAV) per share. The underlying investments held by Colotrust are valued at fair value.

The District places no limit on the amount the District may invest in any one issuer. More than 5 percent of the District's investments are in local government investment pools.

#### NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 31, 2022

# NOTE B - CASH AND INVESTMENTS - CONTINUED

Summary of Cash Deposits and Investments

Cash deposits and investments are reflected on the December 31, 2022 Balance Sheet is as follows:

Cash and investments Total	\$1,346,214 \$1,346,214
Deposits Local government investment pool	\$ 722,104 624,110
Total cash and investments	\$1,346,214

#### **NOTE C – CAPITAL ASSETS**

The following is a summary of changes in capital assets for the year ended December 31, 2022:

Beginning			Ending
Balance	Increases	<u>Decreases</u>	Balance
\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -
2,454,903	301,333	_	2,756,236
655,742	_	_	655,742
121,626	_	_	121,626
3,597,095	_	_	3,597,095
88,760	<u> </u>		88,760
6,918,126	301,333	<u> </u>	7,219,459
(914,393)	(139,445)	_	(1,053,838)
(655,742)	_	_	(655,742)
(93,203)	(8,522)	_	(101,725)
(1,032,625)	(94,355)	_	(1,126,980)
(39,977)	(3,834)	<u> </u>	(43,811)
(2,735,940)	(246,156)	<u></u>	(2,982,096)
4,182,186	55,177	<u> </u>	4,237,363
\$ 4,182,186	<u>\$ 55,177</u>	<u>\$</u>	<u>\$ 4,237,363</u>
	Balance  \$ -  2,454,903 655,742 121,626 3,597,095 88,760 6,918,126  (914,393) (655,742) (93,203) (1,032,625) (39,977) (2,735,940) 4,182,186	Balance       Increases         \$ -       \$ -         2,454,903       301,333         655,742       -         121,626       -         3,597,095       -         88,760       -         6,918,126       301,333         (914,393)       (139,445)         (655,742)       -         (93,203)       (8,522)         (1,032,625)       (94,355)         (39,977)       (3,834)         (2,735,940)       (246,156)         4,182,186       55,177	Balance         Increases         Decreases           \$ -         \$ -         \$ -           2,454,903         301,333         -           655,742         -         -           121,626         -         -           3,597,095         -         -           88,760         -         -           6,918,126         301,333         -           (914,393)         (139,445)         -           (655,742)         -         -           (93,203)         (8,522)         -           (1,032,625)         (94,355)         -           (39,977)         (3,834)         -           (2,735,940)         (246,156)         -           4,182,186         55,177         -

#### NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

#### December 31, 2022

#### NOTE C - CAPITAL ASSETS - CONTINUED

Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs as follows:

Governmental activities:

Community operations\$ 233,800Public safety12,356Total depreciation expense\$\$246,156

#### NOTE D – RISK MANAGEMENT

Aggata

The District is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts, thefts of, damage to, or destruction of assets; errors or omissions; or injuries to employees. The District is insured for such risks as a member of the Colorado Special Districts Property and Liability Pool (Pool). The Pool is an organization created by intergovernmental agreement to provide property and general liability, automobile physical damage and liability, public officials liability and boiler and machinery coverage to its members. The Pool provides coverage for property claims up to the values declared and liability coverage for claims up to \$1,000,000. Settled claims have not exceeded this coverage in any of the past three fiscal years.

The District pays annual premiums to the Pool for liability, property and public official's coverage. In the event aggregated losses incurred by the Pool exceed amounts recoverable from reinsurance contracts and funds accumulated by the Pool, the Pool may require additional contributions from the Pool members. Any excess funds which the Pool determines are not needed for purposes of the Pool may be returned to the members pursuant to a distribution formula.

A summary of audited statutory basis financial information for the Pool as of and for the year ended December 31, 2021 (latest information available) is as follows:

\$ 68 105 261

Assets	<u>\$ 08,193,201</u>
Liabilities	\$ 46,165,251
Capital and surplus	22,030,010
Total	<u>\$ 68,195,261</u>
Revenues	\$ 24,889,624
Investment income and other	482,027
Total revenue	25,371,651
Expenses	25,123,490
Excess of revenues over (under) expenses	<u>\$ 248,161</u>

#### NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 31, 2022

#### NOTE E – COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

During the normal course of business, the District may incur claims and other assertions against it from various agencies and individuals. Management of the District and their legal representatives have disclosed that there are no material outstanding claims against the District at December 31, 2022.

# NOTE F – AGREEMENTS WITH CORDILLERA VALLEY CLUB PROPERTY OWNERS ASSOCIATION

#### Security Services Agreement

The District entered into an agreement with Cordillera Valley Club Property Owners Association (CVCPOA) on October 1, 2011, whereby the District is to provide Security Services pursuant to the Protective Covenants as set forth in the agreement. The funds necessary to provide the Security Services will be derived from the District's power to raise funds within its boundaries through fees, charges and ad valorem taxes and through contributions from CVCPOA as the parties consider necessary. The term of the agreement commenced on October 1, 2011 and allows for renewal terms each year.

#### NOTE G - TABOR AMENDMENT

In November 1992, Colorado voters amended Article X of the Colorado Constitution by adding Section 20; commonly known as the Taxpayer's Bill of Rights (TABOR). TABOR contains revenue, spending, tax and debt limitations that apply to the State of Colorado and local governments. TABOR requires, with certain exceptions, advance voter approval for any new tax, tax rate increase, mill levy above that for the prior year, extension of any expiring tax, or tax policy change directly causing a net tax revenue gain to any local government.

Except for refinancing bonded debt at a lower interest rate or adding new employees to existing pension plans, TABOR requires advance voter approval for the creation of any multiple-fiscal year debt or other financial obligation unless adequate present cash reserves are pledged irrevocable and held for payments in all future fiscal years.

TABOR also requires local governments to establish an emergency reserve to be used for declared emergencies only. The reserve is calculated at 3% of fiscal year spending. Fiscal year spending excludes bonded debt service, expenditure of bond proceeds and enterprise spending. The District has reserved \$13,656, which is the approximate required reserve at December 31, 2022.

On November 5, 2002, the District's voters approved taxes to be increased \$450,000 annually, or by such lesser amount as may be necessary to pay for the District's operations, maintenance, and other expenses. The voter approval also limited the mill levy to 25.000 mills. On November 8, 2016, the District's voters removed the \$450,000 cap, so that property taxes are now only limited by the 25.000 mills. All tax increases constitute voter-approved revenue changes and are to be collected and spent by the District

#### NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 31, 2022

#### NOTE G – TABOR AMENDMENT – CONTINUED

without regard to any spending, revenue-raising, or other limitation contained within Article X, Section 20, of the Colorado Constitution, and without limiting in any year the amount of other revenues that may be collected and spent by the District.

The District's management believes it is in compliance with the financial provisions of TABOR. However, TABOR is complex and subject to interpretation. Many of its provisions, including the interpretation of how to calculate fiscal year spending limits, will require judicial interpretation.

#### NOTE H – LONG-TERM DEBT

In 2020 the District issued the Taxable Series 2020 General Obligation Bonds, to refund the 2018 Series Note. The interest rate on the bonds is fixed at 2.35% with interest payments due June 1 and December 1 of every year commencing June 1, 2021 through December 1, 2037. Principal payments are due December 1 of every year commencing on December 1, 2021.

The 2020 refunding reduced total debt service payments over the subsequent 16 years by \$459,623. This results in an economic gain (difference between the present values of the debt service payments on the old and new debt) of \$343,562.

The loan requires payments as follows:

_Year_	<u>Principal</u>	Interest	Total	
2023	95,000	31,667	126,667	
2024	100,000	29,434	129,434	
2025	105,000	27,084	132,084	
2026	105,000	24,617	129,617	
2027	110,000	22,149	132,149	
2028-2032	580,000	71,149	651,149	
2033-2034	252,527	8,931	261,458	
	<u>\$ 1,347,527</u>	<u>\$ 215,031</u>	\$ 1,562,558	
	Beginning		Ending	
	Balance		Balance	
Taxable Series 2020 General Obligation Refunding Bonds, direct placement		tions Reductions	2022	
	\$ <u>1,442,527</u> \$ <u>\$</u> \$ <u>1,442,527</u> \$	_ \$ 95,000 _ \$ 95,000	- <u> </u>	
	<u>Ψ1,112,221</u> <u>Ψ</u>	<u>Ψ                                    </u>	Ψ1,511,521	



# GENERAL FUND SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE BUDGET AND ACTUAL

Year Ended December 31, 2022

	Original and Final Budget				Variance Favorable	
				Actual		(Unfavorable)
Revenues						
Taxes:						
Property Taxes	\$	540,970	\$	540,969	\$	(1)
Specific Ownership Taxes		25,967		29,194		3,227
Interest income		4,513		13,874		9,361
Other income		1,200		-		(1,200)
Contributions from CVCPOA		100,000		377,734		277,734
Total Revenues		672,650		961,771		289,121
Expenditures						
General government:						
Administration and management		45,147		41,477		3,670
Office expense		2,000		2,015		(15)
Insurance		5,656		4,839		817
Professional fees		11,639		8,611		3,028
Community Operations		3,000		-		3,000
Treasurer's fees		16,229	16,252		(23)	
Public safety		343,130 339,3				3,816
Community operations		134,504 131,42				3,075
Debt principal		95,000		95,000		-
Debt interest		33,899		33,829		70
Contingency		25,000		-		25,000
Capital outlay		395,750		389,498		6,252
Total Expenditures		1,110,954		1,062,264		48,690
Revenues over (under) expenditures		(438,304)		(100,493)		337,811
Total Fund Balance- beginning		1,504,174		1,512,698		8,524
Total Fund Balance- ending	\$	1,065,870	\$	1,412,205	\$	346,335



# SUMMARY OF ASSESSED VALUATION, MILL LEVY PROPERTY TAXES COLLECTED

### Year Ended December 31, 2022

		Prior Year essed Valuation for Current						Percent	
Year Ending	Year Ending Year Property		Mills	ls Total Property Tax			ıx	Collected to Levied	
December 31,			Levied		Levied		Collected		
2004	\$	15,613,190	25.000	\$	390,330	\$	389,677	99.8%	
2005		15,588,790	25.000		389,720		389,720	100.0%	
2006		16,218,050	25.000		405,451		405,451	100.0%	
2007		15,838,730	25.000		395,968		394,244	99.6%	
2008		20,538,920	25.000		513,473		513,473	100.0%	
2009		20,865,150	25.000		521,629		519,972	99.7%	
2010		25,957,960	25.000		648,949		645,474	99.5%	
2011		25,016,480	25.000		625,412		625,412	100.0%	
2012		17,181,880	25.000		429,547		419,784	97.7%	
2013		17,071,190	26.297		448,921		448,921	100.0%	
2014		15,357,600	25.000		383,940		383,939	100.0%	
2015		15,373,720	26.440		406,481		406,481	100.0%	
2016		19,015,270	25.000		475,382		472,549	99.4%	
2017		19,065,510	25.000		476,638		474,842	99.6%	
2018		19,152,240	25.000		478,806		478,804	100.0%	
2019		19,293,760	25.000		482,344		481,670	99.9%	
2020		20,777,680	23.500		488,275		483,811	99.1%	
2021		21,241,100	23.500		499,166		498,937	100.0%	
2022		25,760,530	21.000		540,969		540,969	100.0%	
2023		26,885,070	21.000		564,586		N/A	N/A	

#### **Note:**

Property taxes collected in any one year include collection of delinquent property taxes assessed in prior years. Information received from the County Treasurer does not permit identification of specific year of levy.